

# Instruction manual Wattmeter CLM1000 Professional(Plus)



Document-No.	E46
Issue	03
Dated	07.

Postal address

Phone Fax eMail Internet 461757 3 7.01.2014

Christ-Elektronik GmbH Alpenstraße 34 DE-87700 Memmingen +49 (0)8331 8371 – 0 +49 (0)8331 8371 – 99 <u>info@christ-elektronik.de</u> <u>http://www.christ-elektronik.de</u>

Copyright It is forbidden to reproduce or process (using electronic systems), copy or distribute any part of this document. Translation into another language requires written authorisation. This document is for the personal use of the owner of the device or Christ-Elektronik GmbH personnel only.

TechnicalChrist-Elektronik GmbH reserves the right to modify the designations,modificationsspecifications and technical data without prior notice.



## Table of contents

		Seite
1.	General information	2
1.1	Maintenance	2
1.2	Safety instructions	2
2.	Operation	3
2.1	Brief instruction	3
2.2	Contrast setting	3
2.3	CLM1000-Professional operational system	4
2.3.1.	Settings menu for CLM1000-Professional	5
2.3.2.	Displaydarstellungen des CLM1000-ProfessionalFehler! Textmarke nich	t definiert.
2.3.3.	Description of the ON% Function	8
3.	Interface (only Plus-Version)	9
4.	Error handling	12
5.	Technical data	13
5.1	CLM1000 variant types and measurings	13
5.2	Display and operation	14
5.3	Measuring principle and accuracy	14
5.4	Voltage supply	14
5.5	Enviroment and dimensions	14
6.	FAQ	15
7.	Software and data evaluation	16
7.1	Installation of the VCP driver	16
7.2	Installation terminal software HTerm	17
7.3	Configuration of HTerm	18
7.4	Import *.csv files	20



### **1.** General information

#### 1.1 Maintenance

٠
1
-

#### **INFORMATION!**

This device is made to DIN EN ISO 9001 standard and has left the factory in flawless condition regarding technical safety.

To maintain this condition and ensure safe operation pay attention to the information and warnings contained in this instruction manual.

#### **1.2 Safety instructions**



#### DANGER!

If the casing, connection cable or another part of the device is damaged, it is to be unplugged and switched off immediately.

#### DANGER!

Before opening the casing unplug connecting cable.

The screws at the battery cover on the back of the device shall not be opened.

Warranty voids if the device is opened.

#### DANGER!

Ensure that any repairs to the unit are carried out by qualified personnel. Substantial risk for the user arises from improper repairs.

Liquids and dust shall not enter the device. Don't expose the device to humidity or solar radiation for any length of time!

#### **DANGER!**

Connect the CLM1000 only to approved security sockets 100-264 VAC/47-63 Hz with protective earth conductor.

Maximum power of any kind of load shall not exceed 4424 Watt (max. 16A)



#### CAUTION!

If the device is diverted from its intended use or operated wrongly no liability can be assumed for possible harms.

The device shall not be handled with abrasive and sharp-edged objects. The device shall not be cleaned with solvent-containing or acidic substances.



### 2. **Operation**

#### 2.1 Brief instruction



Unplug the load (e.g. household appliance, HIFI, PC...) and plug it in the adapter of the measuring device. Subsequently connect the adapter of the measuring device to the socket.

# All readings are saved even after unplugging the wattmeter or a mains failure. They will be recalled by plugging in again.



Switch between the different modes using the arrow keys.

Approve the settings with the OK key. OK **CLM1000 Example:** Reading 1 Christ-Unit of reading 1 2.41 08:37. Reading 2 Unit of reading 2 3(9) Page 3 of 9 Socket Power plug Adapter load Keys wattmeter

#### 2.2 Contrast setting

The contrast setting is saved after switching off the wattmeter. **The** contrast setting is only possible in menu item 1.



#### Increase contrast:

Press the "OK" button and the "arrow up" button simultaneously to increase contrast.



#### Decrease contrast:

Press the "OK" button and the "arrow down" button simultaneously to increase contrast.



#### 2.3 CLM1000-Professional operational system

**The Wattmeter CLM1000-Professional** is made for measuring the following electric parameters:

following electric parameters:

- Instantaneous real power [W]
- min. and max. of instantaneous real power [W]
- Instantaneous apparent power [VA]
- Instantaneous reactive power [var]
- Voltage [V]
- min. and max. of voltage [V]
- Current [A]
- min. and max. of current [A]
- Power factor
- Load detection (resistance, inductance, capacitance)
- Active energy (consumption) [kWh]
- Apparent energy [kVAh]
- Reactive energy [kvarh]
- Testing time [hh:mm]
- Rate of time over Stand-By threshold [%]
- Time over Stand-By threshold [hh:mm]
- Setting the display color for different performance levels

#### The CLM1000 Professional-Plus has the following options:

- Setting of date and time
- Setting the transmission speed of the interface
- Sending the actual measurement data
- Storing the actual measurement data to internal memory (Datalogging)
- Setting of the storage rate (1,5 10, 30, 60 seconds)
- Sending the stored data



#### 2.3.1. Settings menu for CLM1000-Professional



Through the simultaneous pressing of the two arrows for about 2 seconds, the setting menu of CLM1000-Professional will appear. The various menu items can be selected using the **arrow keys**. With **"EXIT"** the setting menu will be closed.

#### Start a new measurement



If the OK button is pressed for the shown setting, then all measured values and the measurement times will be set to zero and the device starts a new measurement! The CLM1000 changes to item 5 (10).

(The consumer that needs to be measured should already be switched on)

#### Set up of the ON%-Threshold (Standby Mode)



If the OK button is pressed for the shown setting, then you can use the arrow keys to adjust the threshold for the "ON%" calculation. This threshold can be from 0 Watts to 100 Watts. An accurate description of this function can be seen under: "2.3.3 Description of the" ON% "

#### Set up the display color for different values



If the OK button is pressed for the shown setting, then the Settings menu for the Colour-Setup will be displayed.

Here, the thresholds for the red, yellow and green colours can be set.

For the example in the left, the colour modification of the display is enabled and the display lights up:

green when power is bigger than 5 watts

yellow when power is bigger than 10 watt

red when power is bigger than 20 watt

Caution: The colour change function is valid only for the Menu Setting 1 (10) (Effective Power)



#### Setup of the interface and of the data logger (only Plus-Version)

17.10.2007       14:10:06         - Set Data Log       -         - Var. Color       = OFF         - ON%       > 5 W         - Clear Measurements       EXIT	If the OK buttor and the data log	n is pressed for the shown setting, then the interface ger menu appears on the display.
Baud rate:9600Save rate:30 sSize:20 days	The individual m and the settings	enu items can be selected by using the arrow keys can be applied by pressing the OK button.
- Send data = OFF - Log data = ON - Send CSV = ON	Baud rate:	The transfer speed can be here adjusted (9600, 18200, 38400, 57600, 115200) Baud.
		When exiting this menu, the transfer speed will be set up and stored.
	Save rate:	The storage rate for internal memory can be chosen here. (1, 5, 10, 30, 60 seconds)
	Size:	Available storage space depends on the current storage rate.
		➔ 1 Second: 24 hours
		➔ 5 Seconds: 5 days etc.
	Send data:	Once activated the device sends all the measurement data previously "Log data" saved with and deactivates the menu point automatically after the after the successful data transmission.
	Log data:	If this menu item is activated, CLM1000 will save the measurement data in the internal memory.
		<b>Attention:</b> Starting a new data storage means that the previously recorded data will be deleted.
	Send CSV:	The current measured data is continuously transmitted with the adjusted speed and storage rate. Deactivate this setting to stop the transmission.

#### Setup the date and time setting (only Plus-Version)



If the OK button is pressed for the shown setting, then the time and date can be adjusted.

The settings remain stored even after you turn off the device.

The summer and winter time switch is not automatic.

CLM1000



## 2.3.2. Display representations of CLM1000-Professional

Displayimage	Mode	Range	Description
<b>35.9</b> 1(10) WATT	Active power [W]	0,0 - 4224 Watt	Power consumption of the connected consumer in Watts
233.6 VOLT 0.201	Voltage [V]	100,0 - 264,0 V	Instantaneous voltage
(2(10) AMPERE	Current [A]	0,000 - 16,00 A	Instantaneous current
254.5 VA	Apparent power [VA]	0,0 - 4224 VA	Apparent power
100.4 3(10) var	Reactive power [var]	0,0 - 4224 var	Reactive power
0.958 PF	Power factor Load type	0,000 – 1,000	Power factor of the consumer <b>Identification of load</b>
(4(10) LOAD			type: Resistor
0.0238 kWh 00:39	Active energy [kWh]	0,0000 - 99999,99 kWh	Active energy consumption since the beginning of the measurement
(5(10) h	Measurement time [h]	00:00 – 9999:59 h	Passed time since the beginning of the measurement
2.0000 kVAh 7.0257	Apparent energy [kVAh]	0,0000- 99999,99 kVAh	Apparent energy consump. since the beginning of the measurement.
(6(10) kvarh	Idle energy [kvarh]	0,0000- 99999,99 kvarh	Idle energy consump. since the beginning of the measurement.
233.9 Vmax 231.0	Max. Voltage [V]	100,0 - 264,0 V	Maximum voltage of the measuring
( <sup>7(10)</sup> Vmin	Min. Voltage [V]	100,0 - 264,0 V	Minimum voltage of the measuring



Displayimage	Mode	Range	Description
0.231 Amax 0.196	Max. Current [A]	0,000 - 16,00 A	Maximum current of the measuring
( <sup>8(10)</sup> Amin	Min. Current [A]	0,000 - 16,00 A	Minimum current of the measuring
43.7 Wmax 34.9	Max. Power [W]	0,0 - 4224 W	Maximum real power of the measuring
(9(10) Wmin	Min. Power[W]	0,0 - 4224 W	Minimum real power of the measuring
82.5 ON%	ON Time in [%]	0,00 - 100,0 %	Percent and time over the adjusted ON-threshold.
10:02 10(10 ONh	ON Time [h]	00:00 - 9999:59 h	(Standby-threshold)

#### 2.3.3. Description of the ON% Function

Many consumers (e.g. refrigerator) doesn't need constantly the full power from the supply! Therefore it is interesting to know for how long a consumer really needs the full power, and not only for how long it runs on Stand-by Mode.

The function "ON%" indicates how much of the entire measurement time and for how many hours does the consumer run in the adjusted ON threshold (Stand-by Mode). The following diagram illustrates the measurement principle.



CLM1000



## 3. Interface (only Plus-Version)

USB-Interface:	The measuring instrument CLM1000 has a USB- interface. The current measuring data and the stored data can be transferred cyclically in the CSV- mode. In addition, the provided transmission cable can be used. The CLM1000 uses internally a USB-RS232 converter. After the successful installation of the WINCLM program, the interface of the CLM1000 is recognized and can be used as COM Port on your computer.
Transfer format:	1 bit Start, 8 bit Data, 1 bit Stop, without parity
Transfer rate:	<ul> <li>Depending on the setting:</li> <li>9600 Baud</li> <li>18200 Baud</li> <li>38400 Baud</li> <li>57600 Baud</li> <li>115200 Baud</li> </ul> Since the transmission rate of the measuring instrument is limited to 115200 Baud, the transmission time of the internal data memory on the computer could take some minutes.



Structure of a<br/>data block:The measuring data of the CLM1000 will be transferred in the CSV-format.<br/>The individual values will be separated by a semicolon; (ASCII code 0x3B).<br/>The end of a data record is marked with CR(Carrige Return ASCII code<br/>0x0D) and LF(Line feed ASCII code 0x0A).

	Description	Example
	Date Time	01.01.2007 20:50:00;
	Active power [W]	1001,1;
	Apparent power [VA]	2001,5;
	Reactive power [var]	1733,1 <b>;</b>
	Tension [V]	230,0;
	Current [A]	8,702;
	Power factor	0,500;
	Active energy [kWh]	0,5415;
	Apparent energy	0,8745;
	[kVAh]	
	Reactive energy	0,1257;
	[kvarh]	
	Indentification of	0;CR LF
	load	
	0 = resistor	
	1 = inductivity	
	2 = capacitor	
Example Data block:	01.01.2007 20:50:00; 1001,1;20 01.01.2007 20:50:01; 1001,1;20 01.01.2007 20:50:02; 1001,1;20 01.01.2007 20:50:03; 1001,1;20	01,5;1733,1;230,0;8,702;0,500;0,5415;0,8745;0,1257;0; 01,5;1733,1;230,0;8,702;0,500;0,5417;0,8746;0,1258;0; 01,5;1733,1;230,0;8,702;0,500;0,5419;0,8747;0,1259;0; 01,5;1733,1;230,0;8,702;0,500;0,5421;0,8748;0,1260;0;

#### Ein Datensatz enthält folgende Werte:

$\overline{\mathbf{O}}$
0
0
7
$\overline{(3)}$



#### The current and the stored measuring data can be stored, analyzed and Visualising visualized in the CSV- format with the visualising tool **WINCLM**. The Software: stored \* csv file can be opened and processed with the usual spreadsheet programs.

#### **Example visualization WINCLM:**



The WINCLM software and the software description can be downloaded from the homepage of Christ-Elektronik GmbH. www.christ-elektronik.de (Product Range of Measuring Instruments)

#### **Important pointer:**

The software WINCLM will no longer be supported. See chapter 7 "Software and data evaluation" for further information about other software and about the data evaluation.



## 4. Error handling



The CLM1000 gives users warning of internal errors which occurred!

If there is an error the display is red and displays the occurred error!

Error	Meaning	Solution
ERROR1	Internal error 1! CLM1000 doesn't start!	Unplug the CLM1000 and plug it again! If the error continues to exist the CLM1000 can't be used. <b>!Please send in!</b>
ERROR2	Internal error 2! The CLM1000 shows the error and all readings are reset. The CLM1000 starts a new measuring!	If this error keeps occurring during start-up the CLM1000 has to be sent in for further inspection.
ERROR3	Amperage above the maximum allowable value (more than 16 Ampere)	Unplug wattmeter!
ERROR4	The internal memory doesn't work.	If this error keeps occurring during start-up the CLM1000 has to be sent in for further inspection.



## 5. Technical data

## 5.1 CLM1000 variant types and measurings

CLM1000	H=Home S=Standard	P=Professional (Plus)			
Modes	Range	Resolution	Н	S	Ρ
Real power	0,0 - 4224 W	0,1 W / 1 W	•	•	•
Real power (min/max)	0,0 - 4224 W	0,1 W / 1 W		•	•
Apparent power	0,0 - 4224 VA	0,1 VA / 1 VA			•
Reactive power	0,0 - 4224 var	0,1 var / 1 var			•
Active energy (consumption)	0,0000 - 99999,99 kWh	0,0001 - 0,01 kWh	•	•	•
Active energy / 24 h (consumption / 24 h)	0,0000 - 108,0000 kWh	0,0001 kWh	•	•	
Apparent energy	0,0000 - 99999,99 kVAh	0,0001 - 0,01 kVAh			•
Reactive energy	0,0000 - 99999,99 kvarh	0,0001 - 0,01 kvarh			•
Consumption costs	0,00 - 99999,99 €	0,01 €		•	
Consumption costs / 24 h	0,00 - 99999,99 €	0,01 €		•	
Tariff	0,000 - 99,999 €	0,001 €		•	
Testing time	00:00 - 9999:59 h	1 Minute	•	•	•
% ON (threshold measuring)	0,0 - 100,0 %	0,1 %		•	•
Voltage	100,0 - 264,0 V	0,1 V		•	•
Voltage (min/max)	100,0 - 264,0 V	0,1 V		•	•
Current	0,000 - 16,00 A	0,001 A / 0,01 A		•	•
Current (min/max)	0,000 - 16,00 A	0,001 A / 0,01 A		•	•
Load recognition	Ohmscher Widerstand, Ka	pazität, Induktivität			•
Power factor	0,000 - 1,000	0,001			•
Data logger (Plus-Version)	For a storing rate of 1 seconds 24 hours can be recorded. For 5 seconds, 5 days and so on. Maximum 60 days.				•
USB interface (Plus-Version)	Max. transmission speed 1	115200 Baud			•



5.2 Display and ope	ration
---------------------	--------

Display	128*64 Display with varying background lighting
Control elements	3 membrane buttons

## 5.3 Measuring principle and accuracy

Measuring principle	Voltage is measured directly at the load and current is measured by a precision shunt.
Measuring rate	approx. 1 second
Sampling rate	approx. 2000 Hz
Open-circuit recognition	If I < 0,002 Ampere current and power values are set to zero. It P < 0,2 Watt power values and current are set to zero. In this case the power factor is set to 1,00. The type of resistance is set to ohm-resistance.
EEPROM-Memory	All readings are saved even after unplugging
Measuring error	$\pm$ 0,3 % $\pm$ 3 digit from reading at power factor > 0,3

## 5.4 Voltage supply

Connection	Socket at the adapter, permanent load max. 16 A
Supply voltage	100 - 264 V <sub>AC</sub> , 47 - 63 Hz
Power consumption	< 4 VA

## 5.5 Enviroment and dimensions

Dimensions Weight	ABS plastic casing approx. 200*95*35 [mm] (L*W*H) approx. 490 g
Connection cable	approx. 1,2 m
Working temperature	0° C - 50° C, dew not permissible
Degree of protection	IP 50 according to DIN EN 60529 (with USB-interface IP40) with seal kit even higher values are permissible
Protection class	Protection class II (protective insulation) according to DIN EN 61140
Measuring category	CAT II



## 6. FAQ

#### **Question 1**:

The displayed current varies between 0 mA and 3 mA?

#### Answer 1:

The measured current almost corresponds to the one of the no-load operation's detection. As a result the displayed value varies between 0 mA (no-load operation detection) and the minimum measurable current of 2 mA. Consider the tolerance of +- 3 mA too.

#### **Question 2:**

My measuring instrument doesn't display any measuring values, although at least a 3 mA current runs.

#### Answer 2:

A current exceeding 3 mA may run through instruments having only an inductive or a capacitive load and no measured value would be displayed. Reason: in the case of a low power factor, the active power lowers under the point of no-load operation's detection and every measured value is reset.



## 7. Software and data evaluation

### 7.1 Installation of the VCP driver

Check the installation of the driver	If the driver is already installed, the computer will identify it during the connection and a corresponding message will be displayed.
or the unver	Furthermore the CLM1000 will be indicated in the device manager, under the connections as USB serial port like USB serial port (COM 22). Click on
	Start -> System control ->Hardware and sound-> device manager- >Connections (COM&LPT) to call up the device manager.
Pointer	If you are not logged as administrator and select the device manager, the advice meaning that you can access the device settings but cannot modify anything without administrator rights will be displayed. Click on OK to confirm this dialogue and continue according to the above mentioned description.
Installation	<ol> <li>Call up the Internet page of the manufacturer with your browser. <u>http://www.ftdichip.com/Drivers/VCP.htm</u></li> <li>Select the VCP driver corresponding to your operating system.</li> <li>Open the zip file.</li> <li>Double click the *.exe file to start the installation.</li> <li>Follow the instructions of the installation guide.</li> </ol>
Pointer	You can call up the system properties of your computer by simultaneously pressing the Windows and Pause keys. Whether it is a 32 or 64 bit driver system is mentioned under "System type".



## 7.2 Installation terminal software HTerm

	Terminal software such as Freeware HTerm is required to transfer the measured values to the the the the computer.
	For example the software HTerm is available for download on the following Internet page: <a href="http://www.heise.de/download/hterm-eeea223273b529eea4efb930f381de933-1378287065-2653283.html">http://www.heise.de/download/hterm-eeea223273b529eea4efb930f381de933-1378287065-2653283.html</a>
Installation	<ol> <li>Click the download button to start the download.</li> <li>Open the storage location for download files, which is most of the time the folder "Downloads".</li> <li>Unzip the file and double click th Term to open the program.</li> </ol>
Pointer	Downloading the file means you accept the conditions of use of HTerm.



#### 7.3 Configuration of HTerm

- 1. Connect the CLM1000 Professional Plus to the network and the computer.
- 2. Open the sub-point Connections (COM&LPT) in the device manager of the computer and note the COM-port of the CLM1000.

Therefore open Start->System control->Hardware and sound-> Device manager->Connections (COM&LPT). Consider the first pointer page 16. The CLM1000 appears as USB serial port like USB serial port (COM22). If several USB serial ports are indicated, double click the respective port to open the properties. The manufacturer FTDI is mentioned under the tab "General" of the CLM1000.



- 3. Open the program HTerm. The following start window appears.
- 4. Select the noted port of the CLM1000 like COM22 under port.
- 5. Call up the menu of the measuring instrument as described under "Setting of the interface and data memory (data logger) (Plus version only)" page 6.
- 6. Input the Baud rate mentioned in the menu of the measuring instrument like 9600 under Baud.
- 7. Select 8 for data, 1 for stop and none for parity, to adjust the transmission format. After the adjustments have been carried out, the upper bar should look like the one in the following illustration, whereas the values for Baud and port depend on the settings of the device or the computer and may differ from the ones in the illustration.

de HTerm 0.8.1beta	×
File Options View Help	
Connect COM22 R Baud 9600 Data 8 Stop 1 Parity None CTS Flow control	
ERX 0 Reset TX 0 Reset Count 0 0 Reset Newline at None	ow n aracte
Clear received Ascii Hex Dec Bin Save output V Clear at O Kine every	New recei

Further settings are not necessary.



8. Click the button "Connect" to connect the measurement instrument.

HTerm 0.8.	1beta					
File Options	View Help					
Connect	Port COM22	R Baud 9600	Data 8 💌	Stop 1	Parity None 💌	CTS Flow control
Rx	0 Reset Tx	0 Reset Count	0 -	0 Reset Ne	wline at None	Show n characte
Clear receive	ed 🕴 🔽 Ascii 🗖 Hex 🗂 [	ec 🗖 Bin 🕴 Save output 💌 🕴 🕇	Clear at 0 +	Newline every characters	Autoscro	I Show errors

- 9. Transfer data as described page 6.
- 10. The data might be saved in \*.csv format, be treated and represented graphically with spreadsheet software like Microsoft Excel<sup>®</sup> or Apache Open Office<sup>™</sup>. Click the button "Save output" to save the data.

🚰 HTerm 0.8.1beta		
File Options View Help		
Connect Port COM22	R Baud 9600 Data 8	Stop 1 Parity None CTS Flow control
Rx 0 Reset Tx	0 Reset Count 0 -	0 Reset Newline at None
Clear received	Bin Save output  Clear at 0	Newine every 0 ↓ ✓ Autoscroll □ Show errors New recei

The next window opens. Select a storage location and enter a file name. The file name must end with .csv. Click Save output to close the process and save the data.



#### 7.4 Import \*.csv files

Import the data in the corresponding program before treating text files in spreadsheet software like Microsoft Excel<sup>®</sup> or Apache Open Office<sup>™</sup> Calc. The following instruction indicates step for step how to import \*.csv files in Microsoft Excel<sup>®</sup> 2010. Refer to the corresponding handbook when using another program.

- 1. Open Microsoft Excel<sup>®</sup> 2010 to treat the \*.csv file.
- 2. Select the tab "Data".

X 🚽 🕫 - (= -   =		~		Test1.xlsx	- Microsoft Exce	4						
File Home Ins	ert Page Layout I	Formulas Data	Review View	Developer Tea	im							ن 🖬 🗆 🕥 ۵
K Cut	Arial - 10	• A A =	= 📰 🗞-	🛒 Wrap Text	General				- 🎠		Σ AutoSum *	27 A
Paste	B I <u>U</u> - ⊞ -	<u>⊘</u> • <u>A</u> • ≡	■ ■ 详 律	📴 Merge & Center 🔻	<b>- %</b> ,	00. 00. 0.€ 00.	Conditional Format Formatting * as Table * St	Cell Ins	ert Delet	e Format	Fill * Q Clear *	Sort & Find & Filter * Select *
Clipboard 🖓	Font	15	Alignme	ent 🖓	Number	Γ <sub>2</sub>	Styles		Cells	S	Ed	iting
A1 🔻 (	• fx											

3. Click the button "From text" in the group "Get external data".

🗶   🛃 47 - (4 -   <del>-</del>	Test1.x	sx - Microsoft Excel	
File Home Insert Page Layout	Formulas Data Review View Team		ది 🖬 📼 🚱
From From From From Other Existing Connections	Connections Properties All → Edit Links All → Edit Links	Text to Remove Data Consolidate What-If Columns Duplicates Validation ~ Analysis ~	Pi Show Detail Group Ungroup Subtotal
Get External Data	Connections Sort & Filter	Data Tools	Outline Fa
A1 • 🤄 f x			Y

4. Once in the pop-up window "Import text file" navigate to the folder in which the \*csv file is stored. Mark the file and click on "Import".

		8=	:• 🔟 🔞
Downloads Desktop 201424 besucht	<b>^</b>	Bibliothek "Dokumente" Anordnen nac	h: Ordner 🔻
20 Zucier besuche		Name	Änderungsd
詞 Bibliotheken		街 measurement.csv	07.01.2014 11
Bilder			
Dokumente			
J Musik			
Videos			
Computer			
📮 Computer 🏂 Lokaler Datenträger (C:)			
<ul> <li>Computer</li> <li>Lokaler Datenträger (C:)</li> <li>ATI</li> </ul>			



5. The wizard for text conversion appears automatically after the data import. First select the option "Delimited". Click on "Next".

The Text Wizard has	determined that your data is D	Delimited.	
f this is correct, cho	ose Next, or choose the data t	type that best describes your data.	
Original data type			
Choose the first w	a that bact describes your data		
Delimited	Characters such as comma	a. Is or tabs separate each field	
Encod width	Eislda ara alianad in caluma	s with appear between each field	
Fixed wider	- Fields are alighed in column	is with spaces between each neit.	
Start import at <u>r</u> ow:	1 File origin:	MS-DOS (PC-8)	-
Start import at <u>r</u> ow: Preview of file C: \L <u>1</u> 17.05.2008 <u>2</u> 17.05.2008 <u>3</u> 17.05.2008	Image: File grigin:           Image: Sers (masinger \Documents \CLM           10:57:44;0,0;0,0;0,0;0,0;           10:57:44;0,0;0,0;0,0;0,0;           10:57:46;0,0;0,0;0,0;	MS-DOS (PC-8) M10000/measurement.csv. :22;,1;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0 :225,9;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0 :225,9;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0	•
Start import at <u>r</u> ow: Preview of file C: \L <u>1</u> 17.05.2008 <u>2</u> 17.05.2008 <u>3</u> 17.05.2008 <u>4</u> 17.05.2008	1         File grigin:           1         File grigin:           Users'(nasinger')Documents'(CLM)           10:57:44;0,0;0,0;0,0;0;0;0;0;0;0;0;0;0;0;0;0;0	MS-DOS (PC-8) M1000/measurement.csv. :22;,1;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0 :25,8;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0 :25,9;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0 :25,9;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0 :25,9;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0	-
Image: Transformed start         Transformed start           1         17.05.2008         2         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         17.05.2008         3         1	1         File origin:           1         File origin:           10:57:44;0,0;0,0;0,0;         10:57:44;0,0;0,0;0,0;           10:57:46;0,0;0,0;0,0;         10:57:46;0,0;0,0;0,0;           10:57:46;0,0;0,0;0,0;0;0;0;         10:57:48;0,0;0,0;0,0;0;	MS-DOS (PC-8) M1000/measurement.csv. 225, 1;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0 225,9;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0 225,9;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0 225,9;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0 225,9;0,000;1,000;0,0090;0,0257;0,0241;0	

6. Activate "semicolon" as delimiter. Now, the data in the preview should be separated with columns. Click on "Next".

ils screen iets y dow. Delimiters	ou set the de	limiters	your d	ata cor	ntains. Yo	ou can se	e how yo	our text is	affected in	n the previe	2W
Tab Semicolon Comma Space Other:	Text y	eat cons gualifier:	ecutiv	e delim	iters as o	ne T					
Data preview 17.05.2008 17.05.2008	10:57:44 10:57:45	0,0 0,0	0,0	0,0 0,0	22 225,8	,1 0,000	0,000	1,000	0,0090	0,0257 0,0241	<b> </b> ^
17.05.2008	10:57:46 10:57:47 10:57:48	0,0 0,0 0,0	0,0 0,0 0,0	0,0 0,0 0,0	225,9 225,9 225,8	0,000 0,000 0,000	1,000 1,000 1,000	0,0090 0,0090 0,0090	0,0257 0,0257 0,0257	0,0241 0,0241 0,0241	

7. Columns that should not be imported might be selected in the text conversion wizard under the following point. Mark the corresponding column and select the lowest box "Do not import column (skip)". Click on "Finish".

nis screen lets you select ea Column data format © General	ich colun	nn and :	set the	Data Fori	nat.									
⊙ <u>_</u> ext	80 20	'General' converts numeric values to numbers, date values to dates, and all												
O Dates DMV		remainir	ig valu	es to text										
	inat					Advance	:a							
ற Do not import column (sl	kip)													
lata greview														
Data preview General	Gene	rGene	rGene	rGenera	Genera	aGenera	General	General	Genera	1				
Data preview General 17.05.2008 10:57:44	Gene	rGene	rGene 0,0	rGenera 22	Gener:	-Genera	Generaj 1,000	General 0,0090	Genera 0,0257	1				
lata preview <u>-eneral</u> 17.05.2008 10:57:44 17.05.2008 10:57:45	Gene 0,0	rGene 0,0 0,0	r <u>Gene</u> 0,0 0,0	rGenera 22 225,8	Cener: ,1 0,000	-Genera 0,000 1,000	Genera; 1,000 0,0090	General 0,0090 0,0257	Genera 0,0257 0,0241	1				
Data preview <u>Ceneral</u> 17.05.2008 10:57:44 17.05.2008 10:57:46 17.05.2008 10:57:46	Cene 0,0 0,0 0,0	r <u>Gene</u> 0,0 0,0 0,0	r <u>Gene</u> 0,0 0,0	rGenera 22 225,8 225,9	Gener: ,1 0,000 0,000	a <u>Cenera</u> 0,000 1,000 1,000	Cenera; 1,000 0,0090 0,0090	<u>Seneral</u> 0,0090 0,0257 0,0257	Genera 0,0257 0,0241 0,0241	1				
Data preview General 17.05.2008 10:57:44 17.05.2008 10:57:46 17.05.2008 10:57:46 17.05.2008 10:57:47	Cene 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0	r <u>Gene</u> 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0	r <u>Gene</u> 0,0 0,0 0,0	rGenera 22 225,8 225,9 225,9	Cener; ,1 0,000 0,000 0,000	Cenera 0,000 1,000 1,000 1,000	Cenera; 1,000 0,0090 0,0090 0,0090	Ceneral 0,0090 0,0257 0,0257 0,0257	Cenera 0,0257 0,0241 0,0241 0,0241	1				
Data preview <u>General</u> 17.05.2008 10:57:44 17.05.2008 10:57:45 17.05.2008 10:57:47 17.05.2008 10:57:47	Cene 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0	r <u>Cene</u> 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0	r <u>Cene</u> 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0	22 225,8 225,9 225,9 225,9 225,8	Cener, ,1 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000	0,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000	Cenera; 1,000 0,0090 0,0090 0,0090 0,0090 0,0090	Ceneral 0,0090 0,0257 0,0257 0,0257 0,0257	0,0257 0,0241 0,0241 0,0241 0,0241 0,0241	1				
Data preview Ceneral 17.05.2008 10:57:44 17.05.2008 10:57:48 17.05.2008 10:57:48 17.05.2008 10:57:48 4	Cene 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0	rCene 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0	r <u>Gene</u> 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0	rGenera 22 225,8 225,9 225,9 225,8	Cenera ,1 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000	-Genera 0,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000	Cenera 1,000 0,0090 0,0090 0,0090 0,0090 0,0090	Seneral 0,0090 0,0257 0,0257 0,0257 0,0257	Cenera 0,0257 0,0241 0,0241 0,0241 0,0241					



8. Input the location in which the imported data should be inserted. Mark the cell in which the left upper corner of the imported data should appear. Click on "OK".

X   🔒	17 - (	(∺ -  ∓								Test1.xlsx	- Microso	oft Excel								
File	Но	me	Insert	Page Lay	out	Formulas	Data Re	eview	View Tea	m										a 🕜 🗆 🗗 8
From Access	From Web	From Text	From Oth Sources	er Exi Conr	a sting nections	Refresh All -	Connections Properties Edit Links	A↓ A Z↓ S	art Filter	🕼 Clear 🐌 Reapply 🕑 Advanced	Text to Columns	Remove Duplicates	Data Validation	Consolidate	What-If Analysis -	Group Un	Igroup Subto	●를 Show I 폐를 Hide D al	Detall Ietail	
	Get External Data Connections								Sort & Fi	lter	Data Tools				Outline					
	A1		<b>*</b> (*	f <sub>x</sub>																
14	A	В		C	D	E	F	G	Н	I.	J	K	L	M	N	0	P	Q	R	S C
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15			Import Da Where do © Ex © Ne Ptoperti	sta you want isting work SASI ew workshe es	to put the csheet: cet	e data?	x ancel													

9. Once the work with the wizard is done, the parts of a line of the text file are split into different columns of the table.

The further process of the data like the visualisation in diagrams is possible. For further information see handbook of Microsoft Excel<sup>®</sup> 2010.